AVCS

Guiding Hearts • Inspiring Minds • Transforming Lives

2024-2025



Parent Handbook



Grow in the grace and knowledge of our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ.

Il Peter 3:18

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Mission Statement and Educational Philosophy	5
Position Statement/Tagline/ESLR	5
Statement of Faith	7
AVCS, a ministry of Lutheran Church of the Cross	8
Academic Code of Honor	8
Academic Eligibility Standards	9
Academic Achievement and AVCS Conqueror Award	9
Academic Probation and Extra-Curricular Eligibility	10
ACSI Affiliation	10
Admission Policy	10
Appointments with Teachers and Administration	11
Attendance Regulations	11
Bullying / Cyberbullying	12
Cell Phones and Wireless Devices for Students	13
Chapel	14
Child Abuse	14
Child Drop-Off and Pick Up	14
Class Celebrations	15
Class Size	15
Closed Campus	15
Communicable Diseases	16
Contacting your Child at School	16
Curriculum	16
Daily Bell Schedule	17

Discipline/Conduct	18
Dress Code and Uniform Policy	22
Early Release	25
Elevator Use	25
Emergency Preparedness Plans	26
Extended Day Care (ARK)	26
Field Trips	27
Final Exams	27
Fundraising	27
Grading Guidelines and Standards	27
Head Lice	28
Health and Injury	29
Health Education	29
Homework Policy	30
Homework Requests	30
Learner Management System (Grades 5-8)	31
Lost and Found	31
Lunch/Snacks	31
Medication Dispensing Policy	32
Medication Records and Immunizations	32
Money (in Student's possession)	32
Office Business and Official School Calendar	32
Parent Expectations	33
Parental Involvement	34
Parent/Teacher Conferences	35
Pets at School	35

Physical Education Policy	35
Pledges and Patriotism	35
Promotion Policy	36
PSEO (Parent Volunteer Organization)	36
Rates and Fees	36
Registration & Re-registration Procedures	37
Resolving Conflict	37
Resource Department	39
Restrooms	39
Safety (Campus)	39
School Boundaries	40
School Closure	40
Sexual Harassment	40
Snack Recess	41
Standardized Testing	41
Student Check-In and Out	41
Student Supervision	41
Students with Aides (Shadows)	41
Tardy Policy	42
Teacher Qualifications	42
Telephone Usage (Cell Phone Usage)	43
Toys at School	43
Transfer of School Records	43
Transgender Policy	43
Withdrawal	44

Mission Statement

It is the mission of the school, as a ministry of Lutheran Church of the Cross, to be a Christ-centered, Bible-based environment, which provides academic excellence and nurtures students to become life-long learners who know Jesus Christ and share His Word, His grace, and His love with all people.

Educational Philosophy

Teaching the Christian faith is integrated in all we do, because we believe in one God who is eternally revealed through the Creator, our Heavenly Father and source of knowledge; through Jesus Christ, His only Son and our source of salvation; and through the Holy Spirit, the Sustainer and Giver of Faith.

Qualified Christian teachers provide an excellent learning environment of safety, security, respect, and Christ's love.

Academic excellence is attained through the core curriculum, which is sequential, cumulative, and developmentally appropriate for each grade level.

Students experience educational opportunities to develop good communication, problem solving, critical thinking, and collaborative skills, enabling them to lead the Church and their generation into the future.

Students are encouraged to be good stewards of all the Lord has entrusted to their care, utilizing their time, talents, and energies for the glory of God and the welfare of others.

Parents are an integral part of their child's educational experience, partnering with the school to promote spiritual, academic, physical, and social growth.

AVCS uses and develops curriculum that will further the love of learning, increase knowledge, glorify God, challenge students, and follow a consistent developmental scale, while meeting and exceeding the state competencies.

As an extended ministry of Lutheran Church of the Cross (LCC), we invite all students and families to worship weekly, attend Sunday School, and participate in ongoing Christian ministries at their own local churches or, if they do not belong to a local church, at LCC. Lutheran Church of the Cross is an evangelical, Christ-centered, and Bible-based family of faith. You are welcome at all worship services and or activities.

Aliso Viejo Christian School has a non-discriminatory policy. We do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, nationality or ethnic origin in the administration of our educational policies, admission policies, or any school-administered programs.

Position Statement

We are an accredited, private, Christian school where our distinction in education is fueled by our faith in Jesus, our dedication to excellence, and our students' success. Our loving staff is focused on taking the well-rounded student to their highest potential. We value the academic experience alongside vast enrichment opportunities in a small, nurturing, classroom environment. Together, we are courageous and compassionate Conquerors!

Tagline/Student Learning Outcomes (SLO)

"...we are more than conquerors through Him who loved us." Romans 8:37

Tagline	Guiding Hearts	Inspiring Minds	Transforming Lives
SCOS	Kingdom Seekers Discerners of the Truth	Critical Thinkers Healthy Individuals	Courageous and Compassionate Conquerors Productive Christian Citizens
Scripture	"Jesus answered, "I am the way and the truth and the life. No one comes to the Father except through me." John 14:6	"But grow in the grace and knowledge of our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ. To him be glory both now and forever! Amen." 2 Peter 3:18	"Then I heard the voice of the Lord saying, "Whom shall I send? And who will go for us?" And I said, "Here am I. Send me!" Isaiah 6:8
Mission Statement	"a Christ-centered, Bible-based environment"	"provides academic excellence and nurtures students to become lifelong learners"	"share His Word, His grace, and His love with all people."
Vision Statement	"transforms thesoul"	"transforms the mind, body of our students, parents, teachers, staff"	"transforms thecommunity with the saving grace of Jesus Christ."
Student Outcomes	Understand Jesus Christ is their Lord and Savior, the Bible is God's living Word, incorporate the teachings of Jesus into daily life, and participate actively in worship	Develop the love of learning and skills for life in reading, writing, communication, computation, research, time management, organization, and technology	Develop responsibility for God's gifts by investing in the community and the lives of others through intentional acts of community service
Student Outcomes	Develop the skill of discernment to substantiate the Truth	Develop the skills of critical thinking and problem-solving through independent learning and academic risk-taking	Practice love, grace, forgiveness, mercy, and the Fruit of the Spirit

Statement of Faith

Please carefully read the following statement of our faith. Hopefully, it is also the statement of your family's basic Christian conviction. While we respect all people and their religious beliefs, AVCS will teach these Biblical principles as Truth. Aliso Viejo Christian School strives to lead all students into a continuing commitment to Jesus Christ as Savior and Lord.

The Bible: We believe that the Bible is God's Living Word, without error in terms of God's intent in the original manuscripts. Inspired by God's Spirit, the Bible is still our final authority in matter of faith and life (II Tim. 3:16, Psa. 119:105).

God: We believe there is one God (Deut. 6:4), eternally existing in three persons: the Father, the Son, and the Holy Spirit (Matt. 3:16-17, 28-29, Cor. 13-14).

Jesus Christ: We believe that Jesus Christ, in His earthly ministry, was both fully God and fully human, and is now in His glorified state equal and co-eternal in the one Triune Godhead. Jesus' death and resurrection paid the penalty for our sins and, by his grace, offers believers full forgiveness and eternal salvation (I Tim. 3:16, Isaiah 9:6, Rom. 4:25, Col. 1:15-20, Gal. 2:20, I Peter 2:24).

The Holy Spirit: We believe that the Holy Spirit, also co-eternal in the Triune Godhead, brings us to a saving faith in Jesus Christ as Lord and Savior, as the Holy Spirit teaches, gathers, and equips believers to live lives that bring honor and glory to the Lord and fullness of life to the world (Acts 2, I Cor. 12:1-31, 14:1-12, Gal. 5).

Human Nature: We believe that human nature contains selfishness and sin, which are not removable by human means (Isa. 53, Rom. 3).

Salvation: We believe that Christ alone (Acts 4:12, John 14:6) provides what the people need---forgiveness of sins, assurance of eternal life, and joyful peace. This is called salvation and is a free gift known as grace. (Eph. 2:8-9).

The Church: We believe that we are a part of the one, true Church (Eph. 3:4-6, Rom. 12:5) made up of all who believe in Christ as Lord and Savior. We extend the proclamation and invitation of this Gospel (salvation through Christ) to all people, and welcome into Christian fellowship all who accept this message and believe in Jesus Christ as Lord and Savior (Rom.15:7).

Prayer: We believe that God invites us to pray and that He always hears and answers prayers in ways that respect our bidding and fulfill His ultimate will (James 5:16, Matt. 18:18-20).

Baptism and the Lord's Supper: We believe that Jesus instituted Holy Baptism and the Lord's Supper as a promised means of His Grace. We believe the Lord truly acts in the sacraments and that our faith is an essential part of the equation, which makes the sacraments real and effective (Mk. 16:16, I Cor. 11:23-29).

The Second Coming of Jesus Christ: We believe that Jesus Christ will return in glory and power to judge the living and the dead (Matt. 25:31, John 14: 1-6, Rev. 19-21).

Christian Lifestyle - based on the Bible, God's word given to His Church:

- We believe that Christians are to be actively involved in sharing the Gospel with all people who do not yet believe in Jesus Christ as the sole means of salvation.
- We believe that a full sexual relationship belongs within the boundaries of a publicly committed marriage between one man and one woman.
- We believe in the sanctity and defense of all human life, including the unborn.
- We believe that Christians are proactive in peacemaking, seeking justice, and meeting needs for all people.
- We believe that Christians are to work toward breaking down the barriers that divide people—especially those of race, economics, and gender. We do not believe that these distinctions will matter in heaven and that the Church on earth should mirror this eventual reality.

AVCS / A ministry of Lutheran Church of the Cross (LCC)

Lutheran Church of the Cross Council is the governing body for the church. They operate under the bylaws of a constitution and meet monthly to review and evaluate the effectiveness of the overall organization. The following church members serve on the Council.

Council officers:

President: Sheila Miller

Vice President: Ingmar Forster Treasurer: Geri Robinson Secretary: Arlene Hayden

Standing members:

Jay Broderick, Chrissy Brothwell, Scott Dawson, Gene Headbany, Lori Maze, Dan Olson, Richard Peterson,

and Cathy Schlicht.

The following ministry leaders report to the church council:

Senior Pastor: Pastor Paul Finely Head of Schools: Kalyn Peterson Director of Operations: Kevin Murphy

Director of Preschool Ministries: Brenda Smith

Academic Code of Honor

Christian values and moral behavior in education are essential, and individual students are responsible for their own work and actions. Our school and society benefit greatly from the maintenance of Christ's standards. Therefore, be it known, that the following Academic Code of Honor is in effect at Aliso Viejo Christian School:

- The student shall respect the rights, dignity, and integrity of other students, teachers, and support staff.
- The student shall respect another student's right to privacy of materials, tests, and property.
- The student shall be responsible for his/her own homework.
- The student shall behave in an honorable way so as not to either acquire or provide an unfair advantage over fellow students or to hinder another students' progress.
- Before, during, and after examinations, the student shall use only those materials allowed by the teacher or those made available to all students by the teacher.
- The student, when doing research assignments, shall give proper credit (footnotes, citations, Internet and/or bibliography in compliance with teacher instructions) to those sources used in order to avoid plagiarism.

Academic Code of Honor will be enforced in the following manner:

First Occurrence

- The teacher will assign an **F**, **Zero**, **or U** for the work in question and student will redo assignment for no credit.
- The teacher may refer to the incident in writing to an administrator.
- The teacher or administration will notify the parents of the student.
- The administration will make a notation of the Honor Code violation in the student's FACTS SIS (formerly RenWeb) file.

Second Occurrence

- The teacher will assign the letter grade of **F**, **Zero** or **U** for the work or assignment in which the violation occurred.
- The administration will place a notation of the second Honor Code violation in the student's file.
- The teacher or administration will notify the parents of the student.
- The teacher/administration may assign detention or assign other disciplinary action.

Third Occurrence

- The teacher will assign the letter grade of **F**, **Zero** or **U** for the work or assignment in which the violation occurred.
- The administration will place a notation of the third Honor Code Violation in the student's file.
- The administration will notify the parents of the student and may suspend the student from school or assign other disciplinary action.

Academic Eligibility Standards

Aliso Viejo Christian School has established the following eligibility standards for extra-curricular participation.

The "C" Eligibility Rule applies to students who represent AVCS as elected or appointed representatives, who compete on school teams or to students who represent the school in a performing group. Extracurricular activities may be held during school hours or after school hours. The rule is as follows:

- A "C" average is a 2.0 grade point average in core academic classes: Language Arts, Math, Science, Social Science, and Bible.
- Students must maintain a "C" average (2.0) in the current and previous grading period.
- If a student does not maintain a "C" average in the previous grading period, the student is not eligible to participate in extra-curricular activities for the next semester grading period.
- Eligibility is determined at each quarter.
- Middle School students who do not maintain academic eligibility standards may not be eligible to attend field trips or participate in 8th Grade Commencement.

Academic Achievement Awards

To attain the Academic Achievement Award, students need to have maintained the established grade point average for the semester. The categories are as follows:

(6th through 8th Grade) Academic Achievement Awards

Honors: 3.50 - 3.74High Honors: 3.75 - 3.95Highest Honors 3.96 - 4.00

Students also need to maintain a good attendance record and demonstrate Christ-like behavior in the classroom, on the playground, and during all school sponsored activities. Academic Achievement Awards will be given at the end of each semester. There will also be monthly awards given for class consistency or growth in a particular quality (Fruit of the Spirit and/or Conquerors Award). Awards include Academic Achievement, Middle School Conqueror of the Year, Fruit of the Spirit and Conqueror Character Traits, and

Athletic Achievement awards. A note, email, or phone call will be sent home indicating that your child will be receiving an award, and your attendance would be appreciated.

AVCS acknowledges eighth grade students with the highest GPAs at the commencement service. To qualify for these honors students must meet the following criteria:

- Been enrolled at AVCS for both 7th and 8th grade
- Been enrolled in the highest level of math and English offered in 8th grade

In some cases, there may be multiple students with the highest GPA in which case there could be more than one Valedictorian with no Salutatorian honor bestowed.

AVCS Conqueror of the Year Award

The AVCS Conqueror of the Year Award is awarded to one girl and one boy in 6th, 7th, and 8th grade at the end of the school year. To earn the AVCS Conqueror of the Year Award, students need to have first maintained the established grade point average (3.0) for each semester. The Conqueror of the Year is a positive, model student that is actively engaged in school activities. Students need to have no more than 8 tardies each semester and need to demonstrate Christ-like citizenship and behavior in the classroom, on the playground, and during all school-sponsored activities. Students will not receive the award if they earned any detentions or any form of suspensions at any point in the year. AVCS Conqueror of the Year Awards are at the discretion of the Middle School teachers and awarded at the end of the year chapels and at 8th grade Commencement.

Academic Probation

Any student with a GPA lower than 2.0 in core academic classes (Language Arts, Math, Science, Social Science, and Bible) at the end of the quarter will be considered on academic probation. Students who continue to be on academic probation for two consecutive quarters will be placed on an academic contract.

ACSI Affiliation

We are accredited by and are a member school of the Association of Christian Schools International (ACSI). This membership allows us to participate in professional development and student activities offered as part of that association. Teachers attend various seminars and webinars through ACSI, and the students participate in various activities, which may include Speech Meet, Math Olympics, Spelling Bee, Creative Writing, and Piano Festival.

Admission Policy

Lutheran Church of the Cross schools are a ministry of Lutheran Church of the Cross. Lutheran Church of the Cross Preschool and Aliso Viejo Christian School admit students of any race, color, nationality, and ethnic origin to the rights, privileges, programs, and activities made available to students.

Aliso Viejo Christian School reserves the right to be selective in admissions regarding religious conviction and affiliation that in any way would be considered contrary to and/or undermining to the statements of faith and philosophy. The school further reserves the right to be selective in admissions regarding any student whose academic needs require more than the school is able to provide.

Students enrolling in **Junior Kindergarten** must be five years of age on or before March 1st of the school year they are to enter. Students enrolling in **Kindergarten** must be five years of age on or before September

1st of the school year they are to enter. Students entering 1st Grade must be six years of age on or before September 1st of the enrollment year. Students entering 2nd Grade must be seven years of age on or before September 1st of the enrollment year. Students entering 3rd Grade must be eight years of age on or before September 1st of the enrollment year. (Exceptions for JK through 3rd Grade require administrative approval.) In addition, students entering, 8th grade may be no older than 15 years of age on May 31st of their 8th grade year.

Aliso Viejo Christian School utilizes interviews, tests, school recommendation forms, grade level report cards, and standardized test scores to evaluate students for appropriate grade level placement. This is done in order to prevent the possibility of asking a student to withdraw after admission. Students must meet academic and citizenship entrance requirements and maintain successful school performance. All enrollments, however, are viewed as tentative, pending the student's satisfactory adjustment to the curriculum, academic code of honor, school's operation, and standards. Final determination for enrollment will be the decision of school administration.

Aliso Viejo Christian School strives to meet the educational needs of each and every student. In the event a child has a special academic or behavioral need, AVCS will review each case in order to determine what is in the best interest of the child.

Appointments with Teachers and Administration

While we encourage you to communicate with your child's teacher, please keep in mind that most teachers have extra-curricular duties. In addition to teaching, our faculty has professional obligations including yard duty, faculty meetings, administration appointments, and special tutoring. In order to assure that a proper time and place can be allotted for discussion of your child's progress, please email the teacher to set up an appointment. Teacher hours are 7:30-3:30. All teachers will return communication within a 48-hour time period. To schedule an appointment with any administrator, please email them directly.

Attendance Regulations

AVCS observes all laws and regulations as set forth by the State of California and local county authorities in regard to attendance. Absences, especially if excessive, will cause a child to miss valuable learning, which may be reflected on evaluations and assessments. If your child is expected to be absent for any reason, please email their teacher. There is no need to call the office. Students must be in attendance for at least 4 hours to participate in extra-curricular activities scheduled on that day.

- Excused Absences: The only absences that will be excused are for illness, death in the family, or by special permission from the school administration. Students will have as many days to make up missed work as they were absent.
- **Planned Absences:** If you know that your child(ren) will be absent from school for three or more school days, you must let the classroom teacher know as far ahead of the absence as possible. If you are requesting work, the teachers should have at least five school days to get work ready. Work must be completed within 3 days of the student's return.
- **Unexcused Absences:** Any absence not listed above counts as an unexcused absence. Students must turn in all missed assignments. Quizzes and tests must be made up on the day the student returns to school.

Bullying

Aliso Viejo Christian School takes a very proactive, positive approach to generate a campus culture of Christ-like behavior. Aliso Viejo Christian School promotes unity and voice within the student body. Using information such as the chart below, parents are encouraged to help teach their students to distinguish between what is and is not considered bullying and appropriate ways to address it. The school will also educate students on how to handle situations as well as other conflicts that could arise.

Rosalind Wiseman, best-selling author and bully prevention expert, presents the distinction between conflict and bullying.

What Bullying is	What Bullying is Not
Repeated aggressive behavior	Not liking someone
Intended to cause harm (physical or	Accidentally bumping into someone
emotional)	
An attempt by one or more individuals to gain	A single incidence of telling a joke about
power over another	someone
Physical: Hitting, kicking, pushing,	Expression of unpleasant thoughts or feelings
destroying property	regarding others
Verbal/Written: Threatening, name-calling,	Arguments or disagreements
teasing, taunting.	
Social/Emotional: Terrorizing, spreading	Being excluded from a game or group on the
rumors, intimidating, humiliating,	playground (unless being done regularly and
blackmailing, isolating	with intention to hurt the feelings of another)

In the case of an incident or repeated incidents, faculty, students, parents, and administrators will follow the procedure outlined in the section on Disciplinary Procedure. Each incident or repeated incidents require the teacher, staff, and/or administration to implement a thorough investigation and corroboration by witnesses to ensure the safety of the student(s) and determine the necessary interventions and disciplinary steps. In certain situations, the teacher and administration, after gathering information and prayerful consideration, may feel the consequence for the behavior of the student(s) may warrant the immediate discipline procedure of inschool suspension, suspension from school, or withdrawal from school, and, therefore, acceleration of the discipline procedure steps. Aliso Viejo Christian School works to create a climate of kindness and compassion in which students are encouraged and empowered to take a stand against bullying. When an issue of bullying arises, it is important to notify a staff member. As the body of Christ, we need to work together with all parties; therefore, the following guidelines have been established.

Cyberbullying

Cyberbullying (the intentional and repeated mistreatment of others through the use of social media platforms or technology, such as computers, cell phones and other electronic devices to disparage or intimidate peers or staff) has grown in prevalence in schools nationwide. A new law in California gives educators the authority to discipline students for cyberbullying, even if the communication took place off of school grounds. The law does not require educators to police student's social media accounts but gives them the authority to intervene if online communication between students impacts the learning community.

Examples of this behavior include but are not limited to:

- Sending false, cruel, vicious messages.
- Creating websites that have stories, cartoons, pictures, and jokes ridiculing others.

- Breaking into an email account and sending vicious or embarrassing materials to others.
- Engaging someone in electronic communication, tricking that person into revealing sensitive personal information, and forwarding that information to others.
- Posting of a student or staff picture, video, or voice recording without their permission.

Bullying of this nature creates a hostile, disruptive environment on the school campus and is a violation of a student's right to be safe and secure. Cyberbullying and harassment will not be tolerated. The online activities and technologies often used by students engaged in cyberbullying include but are not limited to social networking sites, chat rooms and discussion groups, instant messaging, text messaging, computers, cell phones and personal digital devices, digital cameras, cell phone cameras, voice recording devices, and web cams. As new technologies emerge, they too may be included with the above forms of electronic communication.

AVCS prohibits any discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying of any student based on the student's race, color, ancestry, national origin, ethnicity, age, religion, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, gender, the perception of one or more of such characteristics, or association with people who share any of these characteristics. This would include and not be limited to; physical, verbal, nonverbal, or written conduct based on one of the categories listed above. Should the action be so severe and pervasive that it affects a student's ability to participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity; creates an intimidating, threatening, hostile, or offensive educational environment; has the effect of substantially or unreasonable interference with a student's academic performance; or otherwise adversely affects a student's educational opportunities or ability to participate in school sponsored programs or activities.

California anti-bullying laws and regulations include the following definitions of bullying and cyber sexual bullying:

"Bullying" means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and including one or more acts committed by a pupil or group of pupils as defined in Section 48900.2, 48900.3, or 48900.4, directed toward one or more pupils that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

- Placing a reasonable pupil or pupils in fear of harm to that pupil's or those pupils' person or property.
- Causing a reasonable pupil to experience a substantially detrimental effect on the pupil's physical or mental health. Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with the pupil's academic performance.
- D. Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with the pupil's ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.

"Electronic act" means the creation or transmission originated on or off the school site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following:

- A message, text, sound, video, or image.
- A post on a social network internet website, including, but not limited to:
 - I. Posting to or creating a burn page. "Burn page" means an internet website created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in paragraph (1)
 - II. Creating a credible impersonation of another actual pupil for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in paragraph (1). "Credible impersonation" means to knowingly and without consent impersonate a pupil for the purpose of bullying the pupil and such that another pupil would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the pupil was or is the pupil who was impersonated.
 - III. Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in paragraph (1). "False profile" means a profile of a fictitious pupil or a profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual pupil other than the pupil who created the false profile.
- I. An act of cyber sexual bullying.
 - II. For purposes of this clause, "cyber sexual bullying" means the dissemination of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate, photograph or other visual recording by a pupil to another pupil or to school personnel by means of an electronic act that has or can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the effects described in subparagraphs (A) to (D), inclusive, of paragraph (1). A photograph or other visual recording, as described in this subclause, shall include the depiction of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor is identifiable from the photograph, visual recording, or other electronic act. III.For purposes of this clause, "cyber sexual bullying" does not include a depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious literary, artistic,

Cal. Ed. Code § 48900 (2019)

"Train up a child in the way he should go, and when he is old, he will not turn from it." Proverbs 22:6

Cell Phones and Wireless Devices (Student)

Students may **NOT** have wireless devices or any other connective devices (including, but not limited to cell phones, iPads, and Apple watches) at school outside of their backpacks, unless specifically requested by teacher. These devices must be turned off and **NOT** be used, seen in/on hand, or heard during the instructional/school day (8:00-3:00). Middle School students are permitted to use their cell phones outside of school buildings before and after school hours. Placing a cell phone into silent/vibrate or text messaging mode is not considered turned "off" and is prohibited. Students are not to leave the building(s) to use their devices and any exceptions must be granted by the administration. If the student violates this policy, then the electronic device will be confiscated and turned over to the administration. The devices may be

examined by the administration, including phone numbers called, pictures stored, and text messages sent and received.

- 1st Offense The device is turned over to the administration and can be redeemed at the end of the day by a parent. A demerit will be issued.
- 2nd Offense The device is turned over to the administration and can be redeemed after 5 school days or by paying a \$20 fine. A detention will be issued.
- 3rd or Subsequent Offense The device is turned over to the administration and can be redeemed after 5 school days or by paying a \$25 fine. This fee will continue to increase by an additional \$5 for each subsequent violation of the policy. A detention will be issued.

Chapel

Parents are welcome to attend chapel, which is held in the sanctuary unless otherwise stated. Teachers, pastors, administrators, special guests, and each class will lead chapel each Friday. The children sing, pray, enter into worship, and enjoy Bible stories and special guest speakers. In addition to chapel, daily Bible occurs in each classroom. Offerings are received during the Friday chapel service, and the money received is donated to our adopted World Vision child or other outreach ministries selected by staff with student council input. Chapel times for this year are as follows:

JK-2nd grade: 8:50 - 9:25 a.m. **3rd - 5th grade:** 9:40 - 10:15 a.m. **6th - 8th grade:** 8:05 - 8:40 a.m.

Child Abuse

The Child Abuse Reporting Law found in the State Penal Code 11166 requires that all teachers and/or classified employees report all known or suspected instances of child abuse to a child protective agency. Failure to do so is punishable by a jail sentence, a fine, or both. Therefore, in the interest of student safety, and in compliance with the law, parents must realize that all incidents will be reported to a child protective agency.

Child Drop-Off and Pick Up

During morning drop-off, staff will help with your child's departure from your vehicle in the designated drop-off lane. To expedite this procedure, please have your child's school materials easily accessible. All Middle School students will be released at dismissal to go off campus unless a signed After School ARK Supervision Request form is on file in the office. Middle School students remaining on campus after dismissal must be in an authorized and supervised area at all times. This includes the elementary lunch tables and the grass area in front of the office. All Middle School students must be off campus, in ARK, or supervised by a coach, director, or teacher if they remain on campus after 3:00 p.m. (12:30 p.m. on minimum days). At 3 p.m., the Middle School students remaining at the lunch tables as well as the students that are still in front of the office and not supervised by a parent or coach will be signed into our ARK program. Students in Junior Kindergarten through 5th grade are to be picked up from their individual teachers after school in the designated areas. There is no charge for ARK from 2:45-3:15. Most importantly, when you are driving in our parking lot, please drive slowly and refrain from using your cell phone at all times. Thank you for keeping our students safe.

Class Celebrations

Elementary celebrations include a Thanksgiving, Christmas, Valentine's Day, Easter, and end of the year celebration. Middle School celebrations include Thanksgiving, Christmas, Easter, and end of the year.

Class Celebration Guidelines:

- Length of celebration 40-60 minutes (including clean-up)
- Service project / 1 Craft (this should be one that the children can do themselves)
- 1 game (quiet)
- Small treat (healthy)
- No balloons or goodie bags please
- No siblings in the classroom please

Birthday Celebrations: Please coordinate with the classroom teacher any plans to celebrate your student's birthday at school. Teachers will hold a **monthly birthday celebration** for all student birthdays within that month. Parents of students with birthdays can coordinate a "healthy treat" for the class. Please consider students in the class with allergies. Examples of acceptable treats include popsicles, a Jell-O or pudding cup, fruit cup with whipped cream, a small cookie or brownie (peanut free), or rice crispy treat to name a few. Please avoid high sugary foods or food dyes like donuts or large frosted cookies or cupcakes. Celebrations should be no more than 15 minutes and held at the end of the day. No balloons or goodie bags for birthday celebrations. Students are permitted a free dress day on their actual birthday and will receive a special acknowledgement in class. For summer birthdays, work with your homeroom teacher on your child's special day.

Please do not send birthday invitations to school, unless you invite the entire class. We want to be respectful and sensitive to the feelings of fellow classmates.

Class Size

To maximize the learning environment for each student, AVCS desires to maintain appropriate class sizes.

Grade	Target Number*
Jr. Kindergarten	14
Kindergarten	20
1st through 8th Grades	22

It is the desire of AVCS to provide an educational environment which enables each student to learn and succeed. Class sizes may be changed due to state or federal mandatory guidelines due to health and safety concerns. *Target number may increase my no more than two students to accommodate families with multiple siblings.

Closed Campus

Students may **never** leave campus during the day unless escorted by an approved adult or teacher. The only exception is when prior arrangements have been made with the office staff for the child to be picked up. For the safety of our school children, playground interaction is restricted to AVCS students and staff. All parents and visitors must sign in and receive a "Visitor/Volunteer" tag upon entering the campus. Parents who have an official badge must wear it while they are on campus.

Communicable Diseases

Should your child come down with a communicable disease during the school year, please notify the health office immediately. We intend to take every precaution to alert the other parents so that we may keep illness to a minimum among our students. We will make all notifications generic in form as to protect the privacy of the student.

Contacting Your Child at School

Our staff recognizes the importance of providing students with sustained, uninterrupted instruction. Interruptions and distractions must be limited to ensure that teachers can dedicate classroom time to the instruction of students. Please do not call your student during school hours. Items dropped off for your student including homework, PE clothes, etc., cannot be delivered to them. It is the student's responsibility to come to the office and check for such things. Messages cannot be delivered to students when they are in class, during the instructional day and during the last half hour of school. We appreciate your understanding. Please make after school arrangements for your student in advance so this will not be inconvenient for you.

Curriculum

The following will be taught in Junior Kindergarten:

Bible, reading readiness (letters, sounds, moving into beginning reading for those who are ready), math, social studies, science/health, physical education, motor skills, fine arts (art/music), printing, and computer skills in a computer lab.

Curriculum used in Junior Kindergarten:

Purposeful Design, Beginning to Read, Write and Listen, Math manipulatives, Learning Without Tears, science, social studies and computer skills in a computer lab.

Curriculum used in Kindergarten:

Bible: Purposeful Design

Language Arts: Into Reading (Houghton-Mifflin Harcourt), and Handwriting Without Tears

Math: Envision

Social Studies: Various online resources related to Community Studies

Science: Discovery Education, Amplify Science

Physical Education: Physical Education Framework (CA)

The following will be taught in 1st thru 8th Grade:

Bible, reading, math, social studies, geography, science/health, physical education, fine arts, handwriting, language arts (phonics, reading comprehension, vocabulary development, spelling, writing, and grammar) music, PE, and computer skills, which may include – keyboarding, Word, Power Point, Excel, and Desk Top Publishing. For grades 6-8 there are computer science elective options for Digital Animation, Introduction to Coding, Podcasting, and Robotics.

Curriculum used in 1st through 5th Grade:

Bible: Purposeful Design (Grades 1-2), Deep Roots Bible (Grades 3-5)

Language Arts: Into Reading (Houghton-Mifflin Harcourt), Accelerated Reader (Renaissance Learning) and Novel Studies.

Handwriting: Manuscript, Cursive, Handwriting Without Tears (Grades JK-3)

Math: Envision 2.0

Social Studies: Map Skills (Grade1), TCI Social Studies Alive (Grades 2-5)

Science: Discovery Education, Amplify Science

Physical Education: Physical Education Framework (CA)

Music: Music Standards Framework (CA)

Curriculum used in Middle School (6th thru 8th Grade):

Bible: Winning the Race (Positive Action) (6), Daring Deliverers (Purposeful Design) (7), Wise Up

(Positive Action) (8)

Language Arts: Accelerated Reader (Renaissance Learning), Novel Studies

Math: Math 6 (Envision), Math 7 & 8 (Ph Pre-Algebra), Algebra 1 (PH Algebra 1), Geometry

(Glencoe/McGraw Hill)

Social Studies: TCI History Alive, The DBQ Project

Science: Amplify Science (6-8)

Foreign Language: TPRS Spanish Curriculum

Physical Education: Physical Education Framework (CA)

Music: Music Standards Framework

Daily Bell Schedule

The following is the schedule for Jr. Kindergarten thru 2nd Grade:

	<u>.c</u>		
8:25	Line-up Bell	1:45-2:00	Kindergarten thru 2 nd Grade
			Recess
8:30	Flag Salutes and Prayer (Mondays	2:45	Kindergarten Dismissal
	on bluetop)		
9:45-10:00	Jr. Kindergarten Recess	2:45	Junior Kindergarten Full Day
			Dismissal
10:00-10:20	Kindergarten thru 2 nd Grade Recess	3:00	1 st and 2 nd Grade Dismissal
11:15-12:00	Kindergarten Lunch	3:00	JK/Kindergarten Remaining
	_		Students to Ark
11:45-12:30	1st and 2nd Grade Lunch	3:15	Remaining Students 1 st and 2 nd
			Grade Report to Ark
12:00	Jr. Kindergarten Dismissal		
1:00	Jr. Kindergarten Lunch Bunch		
	dismissal		

The following is the schedule for **Third thru Fifth Grade**:

The following is the semedate for Third thru Then Grade.				
8:10	Warning Bell	12:20-1:05	5 th Grade Lunch	
8:15	Flag Salutes and Prayer in	3:00	Dismissal	
	Classroom			
10:20 -	3 rd thru 5 th Grade Recess	3:15	Remaining Students 3 rd , 4 th and 5 th	
10:40			Grade Report to Ark	
12:30-1:15	3 rd and 4 th Grade Lunch			

The following is the schedule for **Middle School**:

7:55	Warning Bell	2:45	Dismissal
8:00	Classes Begin (1st Period –Salutes Flag	3:00	Remaining 6 th thru 8 th
	and Prayer)		Grade Report to Ark
11:33-12:18	7 th and 8 th Grade Lunch		
12:20-1:05	6 th Grade Lunch		

The following is **Minimum Day** Dismissal Schedule:

12:15	Jr. Kindergarten Dismissal
12:15	Kindergarten and Middle School Dismissal
12:30	1 st thru 5 th Grade Dismissal

Discipline/Conduct

As a Christ-centered school, our role as teachers, staff, and administration is to enable your child to become a "disciple" student who will follow in the way of the Lord. AVCS desires to turn a student's misbehavior into a ministry to the student's true needs and an experience that motivates the student toward better choices in the future. Discipline is a life-long learning process. At AVCS, we strive to:

- Build a faith in Christ.
- Follow the principles of God's Word.
- Submit to the authority of God, parents, and teachers (Hebrews 13:17).
- Understand what inappropriate behavior is.
- Provide ways to re-direct to appropriate behavior.
- Be kind, compassionate, and courageous to stand up for others that are being mistreated.
- Internalize through prayer and guidance Christ-like behavior into the heart and life of each child.
- Follow Jesus and become His disciples. (Romans 12:2)

For discipline to be effective, there needs to be a partnership between home and school. Parents need to:

- Provide prayer and support and seek understanding through communication with the teacher.
- Realize the learning process of discipline from inappropriate to appropriate behavior.
- Teach acceptance of responsibility for behavior not excuses for behavior. "If we claim to be without sin, we deceive ourselves and the truth is not in us" (1 John 1:8 NIV).
- Provide a partnership with the school by "following through" at home.

"The Word of God changes things. It changes situations. It changes attitudes. It changes personalities. It changes behavior. It changes people. ...God's Word provides the basis and direction for appropriate behavior." (*Classroom Discipline*, Gibson and Haddock, ACSI, p. 19)

Based upon God's word and prayer, our discipline plan outlines our school expectations, behavior expectations, tardy policy, and discipline procedures for appropriate behavior.

School Expectations:

- Be on time and prepared (Psalm 31:15, 2 Timothy 2:20-21)
- Listen carefully and follow directions (Proverbs 12:15)
- Keep hands, feet, and objects to yourself (1 Peter 2:17, 3:15)
- Be respectful and kind to everyone (Ephesians 4:32)

Behavioral Expectations: A Christian attitude, exemplified in the student's behavior, is expected at Aliso Viejo Christian School by showing respect for adults, fellow students, self, and property. While teachers will be more specific about behavioral expectations, each student is expected to:

- **Respect adults** by greeting them in the halls and anywhere on campus, answering appropriately when spoken to, using polite and proper language, helping direct visitors on campus, offering to help adults carry packages, and open doors, etc., communicating with the office personnel at the front desk when entering the office, and using the telephone in the school office only with permission of the teacher or the office secretary.
- Respect fellow students by avoiding inappropriate behavior, respecting personal property, being caring and helpful when needed, being kind and compassionate, refraining from fighting or provoking a fight,

- and refraining from activities which might incur physical harm to another person, and refraining from bullying behavior.
- Respect oneself by following the school rules, using the bathroom facilities in a clean manner, keeping an orderly desk and classroom, keeping track of personal belongings, walking instead of running when inside the buildings or on the sidewalks, using play equipment only when supervised by a school staff member, and always being honest.
- Respect school property by keeping classrooms, desks, and eating areas neat and clean, refraining from defacing school property (e.g., writing on or scratching desks, walls or furniture, or textbooks), eating all food at recess, lunch or after school and not in the classroom, refraining from chewing gum, and being in a classroom only when an adult is present. AVCS reserves the right to spontaneously check student locker and/or desk should the need arise.

Beginning each school year, teachers will establish their classroom expectations and guidelines. The Director of Supervision will also establish appropriate playground behavior which will be shared with all students, staff, and teachers. To encourage students to follow classroom and playground expectations, the administration, teachers, and staff will recognize appropriate behavior in the following ways:

- Positive Affirmations = "Catch them being good"
- Verbal praise, hugs, encouragement
- Daily Incentive = stickers, stamps, or team points
- Love Tickets = given for displaying behavior reflective of the Fruit of the Spirit
- 3BR Tickets (Middle School) = given for displaying Respect, Responsibility, and Readiness

The "Love Ticket Store" is a monthly opportunity for students to redeem their tickets for various prizes. Behavioral concerns with your child will be communicated from the classroom teacher, Director of Supervision, or school administration as the situation warrants. Communication may take the form of a phone call, email, or ABC ticket as needed.

Discipline Procedures – When the need arises to utilize discipline for a student, the following procedures are established to work with the student to change and/or redirect behaviors. At AVCS, we desire to form a partnership approach between parents, teachers, students, administrators, and playground aides to work together to encourage and develop Christ-like behavior into the heart and life of each child.

Disciplinary Procedure – Jr. Kindergarten through 5th Grade

- **Step 1:** Initial incident written notation of problem (teacher's record, ABC ticket and/or conduct card) Teacher and Student conference, Parent notified
- **Step 2:** Problem continues without improvement written notation of problem (teacher's record, ABC ticket and/or conduct card)

Teacher and Student conference; Teacher and Parent communication

-Consequence assigned loss of recess(es) and/or written reflection, Biblical essay
- **Step 3:** Problem continues without improvement written notation of problem (teacher's record, ABC ticket and/or conduct card)

Teacher, Parent, and Student communication, Administration informed Consequence assigned – loss of recess(es), Biblical essay

Step 4: Problem continues without improvement - written notation Teacher, Parent, Student, and Administration communication

Consequence assigned – loss of recess(es), in-school or out of school suspension

Step 5: Problem continues without improvement - written notation

Teacher, Parent, Student, and Administration communication

Student may be recommended for probation and/or withdrawal from school. (Probation may include, but not limited to, restricted or limited participation in school activities, sports teams, and student council.)

Middle School Positive Behavior Intervention and Support System

In our journey to fulfill 2 Peter 3:18, "...grow in the grace and knowledge of our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ," AVCS Middle School seeks to provide Christ-centered classrooms that promote academic excellence and lifelong learning. Our desire is for each student to grow into godly women and men who love the Lord, know God's Word, and demonstrate His values in their attitude, behavior, and choices.

Maintaining positive behavior choices is necessary to establish a classroom climate that is conducive to learning and helps students grow, not only academically, but socially. It is important for our students to have the opportunity to learn in a respectful and safe environment free from the influence of disruptive students. For this reason, the AVCS Middle School uses the Positive Behavior Intervention and Support (PBIS) system to maintain the desired learning environment. Students who require intervention for their choices will have an opportunity to think about the impact their choices have on others. By emphasizing the feelings and rights of others and putting God and others before themselves, students are led to a more Christian, empathetic, and social understanding of the affect their choices have on the whole school community.

The AVCS Middle School has three positive behaviors that we desire to see modeled. We call them the "3BR Code" to remind us to show that we are **R**espectful, **R**esponsible, and **R**eady. Positive Behavior Intervention and Support consists of a set of preferred behaviors modeling these values that are reached by collaboration between staff and students. The 3BR Code is posted around campus, and students who demonstrate these values receive recognition verbally and with 3BR tickets distributed by staff. The 3BR tickets are redeemed for prizes throughout the year.

In the event that a student chooses to engage in behaviors that are not consistent with maintaining a positive climate of respect, responsibility, and readiness, staff may use intervention and support. Interventions may consist of warnings, time out, counseling, demerit points, detentions, in-school suspensions, or administrative referrals. In cases of extreme disruption of the classroom or extreme violation of school rules and policies, the student may be immediately removed from the location and referred to the administration. The administration will determine the consequences.

A demerit may be issued by any staff member points depending upon the situation. When a student has accumulated 3 demerit points students will receive a lunch detention to be served the next Tuesday or Thursday during the entire lunch period. At 5 demerit points, students will receive a second lunch detention. At 8 demerit points, students will receive a 2-hour Saturday school and be placed on a behavior contract. Administration will coordinate Saturday school with parents but it must be served. Parents may request that a detention or in-school suspension be rescheduled in the event of a conflict with a doctor appointment. A note from the doctor's office will be required. Students may not request reschedules.

Consequences for not attending a scheduled detention, in-school suspension, or Saturday school will be determined by administration. Consequences may include, but are not limited to additional demerits, detention, in-school suspension, probation with behavior contract, parent conference, involuntary withdrawal, or expulsion from Aliso Viejo Christian School.

Administration will prayerfully consider all the facts in determining the consequences for noncompliance with school rules, regulations, policies, and procedures. This includes, without limitations, whether the actions of the student are repeated. Depending upon the severity of the situation, consequences may include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Sanctions (i.e., may not participate in school sports, plays, free dress days, field trips, commencement, etc.)
- Parent Conference
- Suspension
- Probation with behavior contract
- Involuntary withdrawal
- Expulsion from Aliso Viejo Christian School for good cause (Education Code for "good cause" and the AVCS expulsion procedures are available in the school office.)
- Notification to law enforcement for any illegal behavior (including threats of violence)

Staff may issue 1 demerit point for the following behaviors:

- Cell phone or connective device violation (subject to AVCS cell phone policy) 1 demerit for first infraction only
- Disrespect/Lack of cooperation
- Disruption to learning environment
- Inappropriate use or treatment of equipment or supplies
- Other (as determined by the issuing staff member)

Students are referred to administration for decisions on demerits or other consequences for the following behaviors:

- Defiance/Disrespect
- Unsafe/Inappropriate behavior
- Lying
- Theft/Vandalism
- Violation of Academic Code of Honor (also subject to AVCS Academic Code of Honor policy)
- Harassment: Physical, verbal, sexual (includes bullying)
- Fighting or threats of violence
- Video or voice recording of student or staff without permission
- Truancy
- Tampering with teacher property, including computer, iPad, or FACTS SIS (formerly RenWeb) grading system
- Illegal activities and/or activities inconsistent with AVCS school philosophy and policy while on or off school campus (includes but not limited to: possession of alcohol, drugs, weapons on campus)
- Gum Chewing
- Other (as determined by issuing staff member)
- Dress Code Violation (please see page 25 for details)
- (1) "Harassment" means a knowing and willful course of conduct directed at a specific person that a reasonable person would consider as seriously alarming, seriously annoying, seriously termenting, or seriously terrorizing the person and that serves no legitimate purpose.
- (2) "Of a harassing nature" means of a nature that a reasonable person would consider as seriously alarming, seriously annoying, seriously tormenting, or seriously terrorizing of the person and that serves no legitimate purpose.

(Amended by Stats. 2009, Ch. 140, Sec. 144. Effective January 1, 2010.)

Standards of Conduct

Aliso Viejo Christian School maintains a high standard of conduct. We believe the most effective learning environment is maintained when all students act with kindness and compassion reflecting Christ and a Christ-like manner. Students at Aliso Viejo Christian School are expected to behave in a manner that demonstrates a respect for the right of all students to learn and the right for all teachers to teach. We value truth, academic integrity, a healthy mind and body, and respect toward one another. Each student has the

right to feel safe and free from physical, verbal, social alienation, intimidation, and cyber harm (bullying). Established guidelines are designed for all students to feel safe and to learn in a Christian environment. Aliso Viejo Christian School, utilizes an assertive discipline program, based on positive behavior management, and integrated with Christian values, forgiveness, redemption, grace, and the Fruit of the Spirit.

"Be kind and compassionate, forgiving each other, just as Christ God forgave you." Ephesians 4:32

Dress Code and Uniform Policy

Aliso Viejo Christian School believes student uniforms can assist in positive Christian character growth. The dress code is outlined to assist parents in ensuring their child wears the appropriate uniforms to school appearing neat, clean, and well groomed. Utilizing a dress code helps uphold a unified campus identity and maintain the safety of our campus by ensuring visitors are easily identifiable. Personal appearance should never detract from AVCS's mission or values.

Regular Uniform Dress JK through 8th Grade

Girl's Clothing	Color(s)	Grade Levels
Polo Shirts (avail in long and short sleeves)	White, Green, Navy	JK-8
Polo Shirts (Peter Pan Collar-Short Sleeve)	White	JK-3
Jumper	Plaid or Navy Solid	JK-3
Polo Dress with ruffle	Navy or Green	JK-5
Skort	Navy, Khaki or Plaid	JK-8
Skirt	Navy, Khaki or Plaid	JK-8
Shorts (Button/Zip)	Navy or Khaki	JK-8
Easy-On Shorts	Navy or Khaki	JK-2
Pants	Navy or Khaki	JK-8
Easy-On Pants	Navy or Khaki	JK-2

Boy's Clothing	Color(s)	Grade Levels
Polo Shirts (avail in long and short sleeves)	White, Green, Navy	JK-8
Rapid Dry Active Short Sleeve Polo	Navy, Green, White	JK-8
Pinpoint Dress Shirt	White	JK-8
Shorts (Button/Zip)	Navy or Khaki	JK-8
Easy-On Shorts	Navy or Khaki	JK-2
Pants	Navy or Khaki	JK-8
Easy-On Pants	Navy or Khaki	JK-2

REQUIRED PE Uniform JK through 8th Grade

Middle School only: PE uniforms are to be brought to school M-W-F in their AVCS PE bag. Middle School Students have PE 3 times a week and change into PE clothes before their PE class and back into their school uniform after PE class. PE clothes may NOT be worn to any other class.

JK – **5**th: PE uniforms are to be worn to school on assigned PE days (2 days a week). JK-5th grade does not change clothes. **PE days vary by class and are unknown until the Fall class schedules are complete.

Boy's and Girl's Clothing	Color(s)	Grade	Boys?
		Levels	Girls?
Essential T-shirt (available in long and short	Gray	JK-8	Avail in
sleeve)			Girls and
			Boys
Active Tee	Gray	JK-8	Avail in
			Girls and
			Boys
Mesh Athletic Shorts	Navy	JK-8	Avail in
	-		Girls and
			Boys
Jogger Sweatpants	Navy or Pewter Heather	JK-8	Avail in
	-		Girls and
			Boys
Sweatpants	Navy or Pewter Heather	JK-8	Girls

General Dress Policy for JK through 8th Grade

Students in ALL grades:

- Students are expected to be dressed in the correct uniform each day, unless a uniform-optional day is announced. ALL uniforms MUST be Lands' End or Dennis Uniform brand uniforms. (i.e., generic uniforms including Sweatshirts may NOT be purchased from Walmart, Tilly's, etc.)
- Clothing must have a proper fit. Girls' skirts/skorts/jumper/polo dress must not be shorter than 4 inches from the top of the knee. Rolling skirts or shorts up from the original purchase length is not permitted. Boys' shorts must be worn at the waist and must not hang more than an inch below the knee.
- Girls are not to wear uniform pants under jumper/skirt/polo dress. Tights/Leggings (solid navy, black or white) may be worn under the jumper/skirt/polo dress. Navy or black shorts (bicycle type) **MUST BE** worn under the polo dress, jumper or skirt but must not hang down below the hem.
- Girls' & Boys' shirts must be tucked into skirts, pants or shorts on Fridays for chapel or any other special event/assembly.
- Proper uniformity requires that clothes be clean and in good repair.
- All items must be marked with the student's name.
- Optional ties and belts are for sale for boys at Lands' End.

Middle School:

• Students may wear jeans (blue or black) without rips or holes on Tuesdays with their uniform shirt.

Shoes and Socks – Boys and Girls

• Students need comfortable, safe, closed toe shoes (no sandals, crocs, or boots of any kind). Students should avoid shoes with slick bottoms. For safety reasons, shoes with shoestrings must have the shoestrings tied firmly and laced. Socks must be worn with shoes. Students will be asked to change socks with inappropriate/offensive designs.

Sweatshirts/Sweaters/Jackets:

- Sweaters, Vests, Sweatshirts, Fleece Jackets, Rain Jackets and ThermoPlume Jackets are available for purchase through Lands' End or Dennis Uniforms.
- Please make sure your child's name in clearly written on the inside tag.
- 8th graders may wear the sweatshirt of their future high school after Easter Break.
- Outerwear should be appropriately sized (e.g., sweatshirts should not be longer than uniform bottoms).

Special Dress Days

School Leadership will schedule "theme" dress days throughout the year. Please understand that on these days your student is permitted to wear "non-uniform" dress, their dress must still fall within acceptable clothing guidelines. AVCS has the right to make judgement calls. The following are not permitted:

- Torn, ripped, frayed, worn-out, or otherwise altered clothing is not acceptable.
- Tank tops with straps narrower than three fingers, spaghetti straps, or shirts that show midriff are not permitted.
- Shorts, dresses, and skirts must be no shorter than four inches from the top of the knee.
- Yoga pants, "track" shorts, jeggings, leggings, or spandex will not be permitted.
- Sweats, joggers, and pajama pants are only permitted if applicable to the day's theme.

Hygiene:

- Hair: Students' hair must be neat, clean and may not be extreme in style or color (no dying, tinting, bleaching or artificial lightening). Boy's hair may not extend below the top of the collar in the back and below the eyebrows in the front. The following hairstyles are not permitted: Mohawks, mullets, lettering or lines, spiking, or any excessive hair styles.
- **Makeup**: Elementary girls may <u>not</u> wear make-up, press-on nails, or acrylic nails. Middle School girls are permitted to wear tinted moisturizer, light foundation, and mascara only. Middle School girls may not wear any other make-up. Students are not permitted to wear tattoos of any kind.
- **Deodorant:** All students in grades 5 through 8 are strongly encouraged to wear deodorant.
- **Jewelry**: Girls are permitted to wear only small ¼ inch earrings (no hoops or dangling earrings). Piercings must be on ears only. Necklaces must not be excessive and must be worn under the shirt. No more than a total of 3 bracelets are allowed. No inappropriate jewelry. Boys are not permitted to wear earrings.
- **Sun Protection:** For sun protection, appropriate hats and sunglasses may be worn on the playground only.

Dress Code Violation Procedures

AVCS reserves the right to decide whether the student's apparel is appropriate, modest, conservative, clean, and neat. Continual violation of the dress code will result in disciplinary action. We want our students to represent our school in a manner that is appropriate and pleasing to the Lord.

Staff, faculty, and administration will closely monitor the dress code. Parent support is the key!

For all students: If your student arrives out of their dress code, he or she will be sent to the office and the following will take place:

• Parent(s) will be contacted and given the opportunity to bring the proper uniform. If a parent cannot be reached, a comparable uniform replacement will be issued to your student. **Uniforms tops and bottoms are no longer available for loan.** Your financial account will be billed for uniform replacements at a rate of:

Shirt	\$20
Skirt	\$30
Shorts	\$20
Pants	\$25

• Student will receive a dress code violation appropriate for his/her grade level and it will be documented. After the third violation, the student will receive an age-appropriate consequence. The consequences can range from loss of recess, demerit, detention, loss of skirt privilege, and more.

Early Release

When a child needs to leave school prior to the regular dismissal time, a parent/guardian or approved adult must pick him/her up. All students <u>must</u> be checked in and out by an approved adult. Students are <u>not</u> allowed to check themselves in or out. Please notify the school office in writing if someone else is picking up your child. Children will not be released if the person is not on the "Authorization to Pick Up" form or if written permission is not given. If your child will be leaving early from school with someone who is already on the "Authorization to Pick Up" list/form, your permission will still be required. Parents are requested to notify the teacher in advance when an early release is necessary. AVCS reserves the right to refuse to release a student to anyone whose behavior indicates that the child will not be safe in his/her care.

Elevator Use – Building B

All students are required to use the front stairs in Building B to access the second-floor classrooms when passing between classes and at dismissal. The elevator is only to be ridden by those that have obtained an elevator pass. All elevator passes are issued by an Administrator/Office Staff.

THE ELEVATOR IS NEVER TO BE USED IN AN EVACUATION OR DISASTER SITUATION DUE TO SAFETY CONCERNS.

TEMPORARY ELEVATOR PASS

A parent may email or write a note to the Office Staff requesting an elevator pass for their child. An elevator pass will be given for a maximum of 3 days. The note should include the date, reason for the request (injury, illness, etc.), duration the pass is needed (1-3 days), and must be signed by the parent/guardian. Parents may not request an extension. Temporary elevator passes will only be issued once for the originally stated reason. It will be necessary for a physician to write a note if the condition persists beyond 3 days. A temporary elevator pass, without a written parent note, will only be issued if a minor injury occurs during school hours.

LONG-TERM ELEVATOR PASS

These passes will only be issued upon the request of the student's physician. Physician notes requesting elevator passes will be granted for the stated time period. Physician notes must include, the date, reason for the request (injury, illness, etc.), duration the pass is needed, and must be signed by the physician. Students will be issued an elevator pass that will include the dates for which the pass is valid.

YEAR LONG ELEVATOR PASS

These passes will only be issued upon the request of the student's physician. Physician notes must include, the date, reason for the request (injury, illness, etc.), duration the pass is needed, and must be signed by the physician.

Notes received in the front office will be recorded in the student's FACTS SIS (formerly RenWeb) Student Medical file.

Student must be in possession of issued elevator pass before getting on the elevator and keep it visible at all times. A cell phone photo of your pass is not acceptable. Students using expired or forged passes, or using another person's pass will receive an office referral and the following consequences:

- First offense Behavioral referral/Detention
- Second offense Office referral/Detention
- Third offense Suspension for defiance of authority

Emergency Preparedness Plans

Plans exist for the purpose of preparing our staff and your children to take the appropriate actions in the event of an emergency situation. We hold drills regularly throughout the year. In the following paragraphs are some instructions that we would like you to share with your children to insure their proper behavior and safety in the event of an emergency.

Please assure your child that they are as safe at school as they are at home in a serious emergency. School buildings have been designed with safety in mind, and inspections are made to remove hazards. Your children should be instructed to obey the directions of their teacher or childcare workers. If walking or riding bicycles, please instruct your child to continue toward their destination (to or from school) when an emergency situation develops.

Your cooperation is asked in any emergency. <u>Please do NOT telephone the school</u>. Telephone lines will be needed for emergency communications. If you have any questions about our preparedness program, please contact the office. Thank you for your help and cooperation in the preparation of these emergency procedures.

Extended Day Care (ARK)

"Let the little children come to me..." Mark 10:14

We offer an extended child-care program for only AVCS students needing to arrive on campus before beginning at 7:00 am and/or remaining on campus until 6:00 pm. In the event of having a Middle School student and a lower grade student, ARK is available at no charge from 7:45-8:15 a.m. for the student in the lower grade.

Occasional extended care fees are assessed when a student is not enrolled in extended care. These take effect when the student arrives prior to 8:15 a.m. or is present after 3:15 p.m.

Late fees (for ARK and camps) for picking up children after 6:00 p.m. will be charged at a rate of \$5.00 per five minutes after 6:00 p.m., with a **minimum charge** of \$10.00.

Absences: No deductions will be made from extended care fees for absences during the term.

Holiday day-care <u>may</u> be provided for many of our school holidays. Reservation forms will be made available through bulletins prior to each holiday. **Attendance must be 10 students or greater for childcare to be offered.**

Extended day care will <u>not</u> be available on the following holidays: Thanksgiving Day (or the Friday following), Christmas (December 24-26), New Year's Eve or New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President's Day, Good Friday, Speech Meet, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, and Memorial Day.

ARK IS DESIGNED TO:

- Provide a Christ-centered, safe childcare program, before and after school.
- Provide a quiet learning environment in which children can finish their homework.
- Provide organized activities (games, contests, sports, music, and crafts).
- Provide time for students to read and relax. Reading will be encouraged for children enrolled in full day child-care. Reading can be for personal enjoyment, spiritual growth, or completing homework. Please provide a healthy snack for your child(ren).
- Offer Christian fellowship and growth opportunities.

Field Trips

Field trips are planned to be an extension of the regular curriculum and should not be considered a day off from school. Attendance is required as on any other school day. Most field trips are paid for in advance. For that reason, if your child is unexpectedly unable to attend for any reason, AVCS cannot guarantee your reimbursement. Participation in the field trip is at the discretion of the teacher. Make-up assignments similar to the objective of the field trip will be given to absent students. Students who do not show respect and obedience on field trips will miss subsequent trips. We use contract buses to provide field trip transportation. No students may attend a field trip unless the Field Trip Permission form has been submitted.

NOTE: Parent involvement may be limited or restricted based on the requirements from the venue.

Final Exams

At the end of each semester, students in the Middle School complete final exams. These exams are part of the requirement and will only be rescheduled in the event of a family emergency or for illness. Final exam dates can be found on the school calendar. Please do not schedule trips during finals week as we are not able to accommodate requests for travel. Final exam days are minimum days for Middle School students, dismissal time 12:15.

Fundraising

We at AVCS believe that the children should not be the fundraisers. We hold our annual Gala in the spring and this year we have a Golf Tournament scheduled in the fall. These two events will be our main source of fundraising. Our overarching goal with these events is to enhance our programs, facility, technology, support teacher development, and provide a safe and secure environment. Our snack shack supports our student leadership events. PSEO also holds a fundraiser or two each year to support their events.

Grading Guidelines and Standards

The following guidelines and standards are designed and intended to communicate student achievement in specific subject areas. Grades are reflective of the student's academic work, study, conduct, and social skills. At Aliso Viejo Christian School, grades are based on a percentage scale for 4th through 8th grade and an assessment of grade-level benchmarks for JK through 3rd grade.

Junior Kindergarten student's assessment will be expressed through an evaluation report.

Benchmark Legend:

DV= Developing Necessary Skills

NI = Needs Improvement

AC= Area of Concern

Kindergarten through 3rd Grade report cards are given quarterly and reflect each student's progress toward meeting specific grade-level benchmarks. Quarter 1 and 3 are mid semester progress reports. Quarter 2 and 4 reflect student semester achievement in classes.

Grading:

4 = Exceeding grade level benchmarks

3 = Meeting grade-level benchmarks

2 = Approaching grade-level benchmarks

1 = Showing insufficient progress toward Grade-level benchmarks

X =Concept not assessed at this time

Enrichment/Conduct:

O = Outstanding

G = Good

S = Satisfactory

N = Needs Improvement

AC = Area of Concern

4th through 8th Grade report cards are given quarterly and reflect each student's progress toward meeting specific grade-level benchmarks. Quarter 1 and 3 are mid semester progress reports. Quarter 2 and 4 reflect student semester achievement in classes. The following grading scale is used in grades 4-8:

Percent	Range	GPA
98%-100%	A+	4.0
93%-97.9%	A	4.0
90%-92.9%	A-	3.75
87%-89.9%	B+	3.7
83%-86.9%	В	3.5
80%-82.9%	B-	3.0
77%-79.9%	C+	2.7
73%-76.9%	C	2.5
70%-72.9%	C-	2.0
67%-69.9%	D+	1.7
63%-66.9%	D	1.5
60%-62.9%	D-	1.0
59%-Below	F	0

Head Lice

IF SUSPECTED:

- If suspected of having lice, the student shall be removed from the classroom as unobtrusively as possible for further inspection.
- The student may be inspected privately the school nurse, office staff or by other trained personnel designated by the Head of School.

IF STUDENT HAS LICE:

- The parent/guardian will be notified, and the student will be sent home for the remainder of the school day.
- The school's preferred method of treatment is utilizing a professional treatment service. Contact information for these services is available in the front office. The student will be readmitted when the school (front office) receives documentation of treatment for head lice. This may include a note from the parent describing treatment used, or certificate from professional treatment service. If a

professional treatment service is not used, students will be re-inspected by Office Personnel before readmitted to the classroom.

REPORTING:

• Parents/guardians should report cases of head lice to the school immediately. The affected grade levels will be notified of any incident of lice reported, such notice shall not include names of specific student(s).

EDUCATION:

- While no school can be entirely risk free from communicable disease, it is felt that efforts directed toward awareness and prevention will result in fewer infestations and be most effective.
- Cases of lice are quite common among school-age children and should not be seen as embarrassing or as any indication of poor hygiene.

Health and Injury

Please check your child for signs of illness before bringing him/her to school. A sick child cannot benefit from school and should stay at home to prevent spreading the illness to other children. A child must be fever free for 24 hours (without medication) or free from colored nasal discharge before returning to school. Please email your teacher if your child is out sick.

When a child develops a fever or shows signs of illness (such as vomiting), the parents/guardians will be notified so they can pick up the sick child. Minor injuries will be treated, and parent/guardian notified. In the event of serious injury or medical emergency, 911 will be called and the parents/guardians will be notified.

AVCS will notify a parent and your child's teacher when any serious injury occurs. Our staff will report to you what they know about the injury and how the child appears. If the staff feels it is necessary (based on their best assessment) for the child to be picked up, they will let you know. Injury reports are filled out at the time they are reported or witnessed. The original copy of this report is sent home with the student at the end of the day.

Concerns regarding positive results of COVID-19 and questions related to the school's COVID-19 Action Plan are to be directed to Sherrel Parnell (<u>sparnell@avchristianschool.org</u>). All medical information is protected by the HIPAA Act of 1996 and will be kept confidential.

Health Education

Students in 4th through 6th grade may have the opportunity to participate in an after-school human-development course presented by an outside vendor. This event is optional and is generally coordinated by

parent volunteers. The course is designed within the framework of Christian morality. The course will give families a launching point to discuss the material presented in their homes. Middle School students will receive human-development instruction in science class as part of the life science standards in 7th grade. The parents will have an opportunity to view content prior to lessons being taught in class.

Homework Policy

The primary purpose of homework is to reinforce content material already taught and to develop habits of independent study and discipline. Homework will be assigned as a regular part of the daily instruction. Daily homework reinforces the learning process and demonstrates that learning occurs in all aspects of our life, not just in the classroom setting. The curriculum requires a determined amount of material to be covered and therefore, incomplete or improperly done classwork may be sent home each night to complete.

Homework is an essential part of school life for students and an extension of our program. The following guidelines should be considered:

- If your child becomes frustrated with a particular problem, make a note of it and move on. His/her teacher will review the work and discuss all problems the following day.
- Homework should not be new material to be taught by the parent. Rather, homework should help a student gain mastery of material or skills taught by the teacher.
- Parents can share in their child's learning through assistance in the practicing and reinforcing process of homework. By doing so, homework becomes a form of communication regarding what is happening in class
- Homework is not assigned over weekends or holidays in grades K-5th.
- Each class will have a homework policy communicated to the student and parent at the beginning of the school year. This should include an explanation of expected homework patterns.
- Previously scheduled assignments are due the first day the student returns to school.
- In Middle School, late assignments receive a grade of 50% or lower.
- Time Guidelines: These are meant to be guidelines and may vary depending upon many factors. Homework for elementary students is usually given four nights a week, except when a student is working on a project, etc. which may require more time. Middle School students may have homework assigned over the weekend.

K-2nd Grade: 20-30 minutes each night 3rd Grade: 30-45 minutes each night 4th & 5th Grade: 30-60 minutes each night 45-90 minutes each night

Homework times include having your child read a minimum of 20 minutes every night as reading is essential for learning, both academic and spiritually.

Homework Requests

Students who miss school due to an excused absence must obtain any missed work the next day the student is in school. Students may also check FACTS SIS or Microsoft Teams for homework. Students with an excused absence will be given a reasonable amount of time (one day per day missed), after they return, to complete missed work. However, due to the nature of some assignments, students may not be able to make up the exact assignment missed. In this case, an alternative assignment will be provided. Students who miss school due to **unexcused** absences such as non-school holidays may not receive credit for schoolwork missed during such absences at the teacher's discretion. If notified in a timely manner (at least one week

prior to the absence), teachers may provide assignments for students to complete during their absence, or they may require the work be completed prior to the absence.

Learning Management System FACTS SIS/Microsoft Teams

In addition to FACTS grading and homework information, AVCS utilizes the FACTS LMS system in grades JK-3 and Microsoft Teams/Notebook system in Grades 4-8. These systems will function as the functions as the primary platforms used during any prolonged school closure that would require distance learning. High schools nationwide are utilizing Learning Management Systems and we are confident that this will benefit both teacher and student on multiple levels.

Lost and Found

All items left on the property are deposited in the Lost and Found. Please check the Lost and Found for any of your child's missing items. It is important that all personal belongings (jackets, lunch boxes, etc.) be marked clearly with the student's first and last name so that they may be returned if lost. The large number of unclaimed items that accumulate can be returned with this simple procedure. Please return any items marked with another student's name that your child may inadvertently take home. All unclaimed lost and found items are donated to charity at the end of each month.

Lunch/Snacks

- Hot Lunch is available for Students every day with the exception of Minimum Days. Our Hot Lunch
 Program is provided by Sapphire at School. To participate in Sapphire, please go to the AVCS app and
 click on "Sapphire Lunch." School lunches are delivered to AVCS daily and served by certified
 (ServSafe) AVCS staff members.
- Candy and sugared items are not recommended and should be limited.
- Names must be placed on lunch bags and lunch boxes.
- Lunch box designs must be within the boundaries of good taste for a Christian school.
- Students will not be able to heat their lunch.
- Students are not allowed to share food with others (primarily due to possible allergies).
- Students must eat at the lunch tables.
- Food is not permitted outside of the lunch table area.
- Students must be dismissed before they can leave their table.
- Students must pick up all of their trash, plus additional pieces of trash if visible when they are finished eating.
- Please do not pack lunches in glass containers.
- Students may not consume soda, energy drinks, or caffeinated beverages during school hours.
- If you are dropping off lunch for your child, please drop the clearly labeled lunch at the reception desk and instruct your child that their lunch will be at our kitchen/lunch window.
- Please do not have lunch delivered to the school via 3rd party delivery services i.e.: Grubhub, DoorDash, UberEats, etc.

Medication Dispensing Policy

All medications (this includes prescription medications as well as non-prescription, over the counter medications such as, but not limited to, pain relievers, cough drops and vitamins) MUST be submitted to AVCS office personnel along with a completed "Medication Release" form signed by the child's physician as listed in their school application form. One form for each medication is required annually and must be updated as changes in medication occur. If your child is required to carry their medication on them, their physician must specify this on the "Medication Release" form. All medications must come in their original packaging. NO medication can be administered without the signed paperwork. NO parent phone requests to administer medication can be accepted.

Medical Records and Immunizations

AVCS must adhere to the California state immunization laws which requires us to have immunization records on file for every student. Under Senate Bills (SB) 276 and SB 714, all new medical exemptions for school entry must be issued by a physician through the California Immunization Registry – Medical Exemption website (CAIR-ME) beginning January 1, 2021. Schools may only accept new medical exemptions that are issued using CAIR-ME.

Parents and physicians can register and create an account in CAIR-ME at any time. Once registered, parents can log in to CAIR-ME to request a medical exemption; parents then take the exemption request number to their child's physician who can log in to CAIR-ME to issue the exemption. When the exemption is issued, the physician prints the two-page form and provides a copy to the parents to give to their child's school.

The following vaccines are required by AVCS and the State of California:

- Diphtheria, Tetanus, and Pertussis (DTaP, DTP, Tdap, or Td) 5 doses. (4 doses OK if one was given on or after 4th birthday. ...
- Polio (OPV or IPV) 4 doses. ...
- Hepatitis B 3 doses. ...
- Measles, Mumps, and Rubella (MMR) 2 doses. ...
- Varicella (Chickenpox) 2 doses.

For more information on required vaccines, please go to http://eziz.org/assets/docs/IMM-231.pdf and for instructions on how to request a medical exemption please go to https://eziz.org/assets/docs/shotsforschool/IMM-1363.pdf, or feel free to call or email the school nurse. All

students who have moved into the U.S. within the last six months mush have a TB screening.

Money (Students bringing it to school)

Students are discouraged from bringing large amounts of money to school. AVCS cannot be responsible for lost or stolen money. If, for some reason, a child needs to bring money, it should be turned in immediately to the child's teacher upon arrival. The Snack Shack will be open after school on selected days. An offering is collected at chapel on Friday to support designated outreach ministries.

Office Business

The school office is open for business Monday through Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., and phone calls will be answered during those hours. If you are calling before or after hours, please listen to the

voicemail prompts so that you may leave a message for the appropriate person. There is an option for speaking to someone in ARK during ARK hours. Appointments for conferences with the administration should be made ahead of time by email, by note, or by phone to avoid confusion or disappointment.

When visiting the school, please remember to sign in at the reception desk. For the safety of the children and staff, all volunteers are required to wear "Visitor/Volunteer" tags, which may be obtained in the office. Please keep young children (infants, toddlers) with you at all times. Please keep children from climbing, handling material on the counter, using office equipment, or making loud noises, as reception staff may be in conference or on the phone.

Your cooperation concerning office business is greatly appreciated and will help us to better serve the needs of the children and the school.

Official School Calendar 2024-2025

This school calendar, as well as a more detailed calendar of events is available for Students and Parents on our AVCS School App by clicking the "Calendar" button.



Parent Expectations

It is a blessing to partner with our parents in Christian education. We would expect parents to participate in the following ways:

- Pray for our school
- Attend Back to School Night, parent/teacher conferences, and other school sponsored family events.
- Follow the Matthew 18 Good Reporting Policy
- Show respect and all treat AVCS staff fairly
- Read and abide by information within the Parent Handbook

Parents who are not employed by AVCS are not allowed to approach another student concerning a disciplinary issue while on the AVCS campus and during school hours. If you have a concern regarding another student, it must be brought to the attention of the classroom teacher or administration.

Parents should refrain from approaching or communicating with the AVCS/LCC staff in an aggressive and hostile manner. If you have an issue to discuss with a staff member, please make an appointment.

Non-compliance to these expectations will result in the following:

First offense – Written documentation and meeting with administration. Parent may be suspended from the school campus for a period of time determined by administration.

Second offense – Written documentation and meeting with administration. Parent will be suspended from the school campus for the remainder of the school year.

Third offense – Written documentation and meeting with administration and school council member. Family may be asked to withdraw from the school.

It is our goal to work within the framework of the Matthew 18 principle. We pray that a peaceful resolution can be found to any disciplinary situation that may arise involving your child and another student.

Parental Involvement

Parental involvement is encouraged at Aliso Viejo Christian School. Volunteering in school activities, classroom functions, Chapel, and parent/teacher conferences provides opportunity to become involved in your child's education. During Back-to-School Night and throughout the school year, there will be many opportunities to sign up to volunteer within the classroom and through PSEO (our parent organization).

To enhance a better understanding of the educational process on the part of every family, parents are invited to visit their child's classroom during the school year. All parent volunteers, whether volunteering in the classroom or on a field trip, must have a background check. AVCS covers the cost of these background checks with a limit of two volunteers per family. Paperwork will be made available from the front office. Attendance on class field trips is encouraged, however, there are times the venue will only allow a certain number of parent chaperones. Parents are welcome and encouraged to participate in a variety of ways, but arrangements for any visitation or classroom help should be made with your child's teacher in advance. As this time is very important to your child's education, siblings are not to be in attendance.

Aliso Viejo Christian School strives for a partnership with each child's parents. Communication and cooperation between home and school are essential. Please check with your child's teacher as to the individual classroom method for parent/teacher communication (homework folder and/or e-mail). Phone calls to teachers are to be directed through the office and will be returned as soon as possible (within a 48-hour period). Email is the preferred method of initial contact.

Parents and children who do not have a local church home are invited to participate in weekly worship, Sunday school, and all bible studies and fellowship at Lutheran Church of the Cross at Laguna Woods.

Parent/Teacher Conferences (Fall and Spring)

In addition to any conferences scheduled by the parent or teacher, the school schedules parent/teacher conferences twice during the year. Parents are strongly encouraged to attend. The conference days will be indicated on the school calendar. Report cards are distributed four times during the school year. Quarters 1 and 3 are progress reports. Quarters 2 and 4 are Semester Report Cards.

Pets at School

For the safety of all students and staff, **pets are not permitted past the perimeter gates** on campus. If you have your pet with you in front of the school, they must be on a leash. On occasion, a child may bring a pet to share with their class with prior permission from their teacher and administration.

Physical Education Policy

Physical education is an important part of the academic day. JK through 5th grade students have PE twice a week. Middle School students will have PE three times per week. Students should come to PE prepared with appropriate PE uniforms and athletic shoes. If a student is not participating in PE for any reason, a parent must send a written note or email to the PE teachers in order for the student to be exempt from PE on that day. If a student cannot participate in PE, then he/she cannot participate in physical recess activity that day. If a student has an injury that requires a doctor's attention, then a doctor's note will be needed with specified dates for exclusion from PE (beginning and ending dates).

Pledges and Patriotism

Each school day will begin with the recitation of the following pledges of allegiance:

American Flag

I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America and to the Republic for which it stands, one nation under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.

Christian Flag

I pledge allegiance to the Christian Flag, and to the Savior for whose kingdom it stands. One Savior, crucified, risen, and coming again with life and liberty for all who believe.

Bible

I pledge allegiance to the Bible, God's Holy Word.

I will make it a lamp unto my feet and a light unto my path.

I will hide its words in my heart that I might not sin against God.

Pledge to God

I pledge myself to God the Father,
who created me and loves me.
I will live each day with faith in Jesus His Son,
empowered by His Holy Spirit to do His will for His glory.

Promotion Policy

Students are promoted to the next grade upon successful completion of the academic program in the previous grade. Decisions are made by the teacher and administration, in consultation with the parents, as to whether to retain or promote a child. This is based upon classroom performance, absences, test scores, as well as emotional and physical aptitude. 8th grade students who have not maintained a 2.0 GPA in core academic classes (Language Arts, Math, Science, Social Science, and Bible) may be denied the opportunity to participate in the 8th grade commencement ceremony.

PSEO (Parent Volunteer Organization)

PSEO stands for Psalm Seventy-Eight Organization. Psalm 78 states, "Our Lord commanded our forefathers to teach their children so the next generation would know them, even the children yet to be born, and they in turn would tell their children. Then they would put their trust in God and would forget not His deeds but would keep His commands." Psalm 78:5-7.

PSEO is our parent volunteer organization that plans and implements many of the school's social functions and ministries. (Similar to a "P.T.A.") PSEO meetings are typically held once per month. We have an informal continental breakfast and discuss upcoming AVCS events. This is a fun way for you to get connected with other parents and keep updated on the happenings of your school. For questions regarding PSEO for this school year, please contact Veronique Lara at: vlara@avchristianschool.org.

Rates and Fees

Admission Policy

Aliso Viejo Christian School has a non-discriminatory policy. We do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national or ethnic origin in the administration of our educational policies, admission policies, or any school-administered programs. Students applying must sincerely desire to attend AVCS and to grow in the grace and knowledge of our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ. Parents must support the Bible-based, Christ-centered teachings, as well as, the rules and policies of AVCS.

Application Process for New Students

The following are required for all new students:

- Online application submitted
- Copy of the official birth certificate and immunization records
- Report cards and standardized testing from the past two years for those entering 2nd-8th grade
- Grade level assessments for incoming Kindergarten and 8th grade students
- Completed student recommendation form

Fees & Tuition

\$125 One-Time (Per Student) Application Fee (Non-Refundable)

\$600 Registration Fee (Per Student JK-8) (Non-Refundable)

\$500 Tech/PSEO Fees (Per student JK-8) (Non-refundable)

2024-2025 Tuition & ARK Rates

JK (Full Day	y) thru 8 th Grade	JK (includi	ng Lunch Bunch)	JK (H	alf Day Only)
1 st Child	\$13,100/ Yr.	1st Child	\$10,379 / Yr.	1 st Child	\$9,388 / Yr.
	\$1,191/ Mo.		\$944/ Mo.		\$853/ Mo.
2 nd Child	\$11,135/ Yr.	2 nd Child	\$8,822/ Yr.	2 nd Child	\$7,980/ Yr.
	\$1,012 / Mo.		\$802 / Mo.		\$725 / Mo.
3 rd Child	\$9,825/ Yr.	3 rd Child	\$7,784/ Yr.	3 rd Child	\$7,041/ Yr.
	\$893/ Mo.		\$708/ Mo.		\$640 / Mo.

CAMP: (Extended Child Care) Child care <u>may</u> be provided during Thanksgiving Vacation, Christmas Vacation, and Easter Break (if there are a minimum of 10 pre-paid students signed up).

AVCS is pleased to offer two options for Before and After School ARK for the 2024-2025 school year. We have adjusted billing for next year to streamline the billing process and adjusted pricing based upon current hourly staffing costs. Please choose one of the following options as part of your enrollment packet for the 2024-2025 school year.

OPTION ONE:		OPTION TWO:	
ARK (3:00 – 6:00) Monthly Contracted Fees		Occasional Childcare (Rates)	
1 st Child	\$275	1 st Child	\$12
2 nd Child	\$250	2 nd Child	\$12
Additional Children	\$200	Additional Children	\$12
ARK fees will be automatically billed from your		Occasional Childcare will be billed on the 6th of the	
Brightwheel account at the beginning of each		month based upon usage from the previous month.	
month from September through June.		Morning ARK will be prorated based on time used.	

Late fees for picking children up after 6:00 p.m. will be charged at a rate of \$5 per 5-minute segment, including any part of a 5-minute segment (for example, a 6:08 p.m. pick up would cost \$10).

Registration Procedures

- Completion of enrollment, application and parent agreement by parent or guardian.
- Payment of application and enrollment fee by parent or guardian.
- Placement on class list. A student is not placed on the class roster until online enrollment has been submitted and registration is paid.
- All enrollment and application fees are non-refundable and/or transferable, unless the school declines to accept a student.

Re-Registration

Priority registration is given to returning students and their families. Continued acceptance at AVCS is based on successful completion of the academic expectations of the previous grade level, adherence to the AVCS Academic Code of Honor and Standard of Conduct, and current fees paid. There must also be satisfactory attitude and effort on the part of the student. If, in the judgement of the faculty and administration, it is considered detrimental to a class as a whole, a student may not be permitted to re-register.

Resolving Conflict and Good Report Policy

• "Jesus said, 'If your brother sins against you, go and show him his fault, just between the two of you. If he listens to you, you may have won your brother over. But if he will not listen, take one or two

others along, so that every matter may be established by the testimony of two or three witnesses." Matthew 18:15-16

- "A gossip betrays a confidence, but a trustworthy man keeps a secret." Proverbs 11:13
- "A perverse man stirs up dissension, and a gossip separates close friends." Proverbs 16:28
- "The words of a gossip are like choice morsels; they go down to a man's inmost parts." Proverbs 18:8
- "If anyone considers himself religious and yet does not keep a tight rein on his tongue, he deceives himself and his religion is worthless." James 1:26

In every church and school there is a multitude of interpersonal relationships. If sin can cut off or taint any line of communication, it will score a victory. In such instances, people will often end up offending others and being offended themselves because of the gossip and slander that prevail. In such an atmosphere, it is impossible to enjoy our Lord's peace and presence.

Our goal is to build unity so we can enjoy an atmosphere of the presence of Christ and to impress upon our students and their families His love and power. We wish to exalt Jesus Christ and to uplift His body of believers.

If differences between staff members, parents, or church members arise, it is important to remember there are biblical principles and steps to follow. In order to encourage such biblical principles and steps, we practice a "Good Report" principle at Aliso Viejo Christian School/Lutheran Church of the Cross Preschool and Lutheran Church of the Cross/Aliso Viejo Church of the Cross.

The Good Report Principle: If a person comes to you to express dissatisfaction, gossip, or slander about a fellow staff member, church member, parent, or student, it is your responsibility, as quickly and kindly as possible, to interrupt and say, "I appreciate your concern, but I have committed myself to listen to only good reports about others. I must ask you before you go any further, have you spoken with _____ about this problem? If they have not, please respond asking, "Would you please talk with _____ to try to reach an understanding? If you are not satisfied, please go to the Administrator or Pastor, and he/she will go with you as a witness to discuss the matter further."

No one will practice it perfectly, but when it is our honest intention to entertain only good reports, we will make great strides toward the unity in Christ and in His Body that our Lord's Church deserves. The goal of the Good Report Principle is to exalt Jesus Christ and the edification of His body of believers by following biblical principles and by striving to "tame the tongue" as Scripture invites in James 1 and 3.

If differences or conflict should happen, the Matthew 18 principle will apply when it comes to resolving differences and or conflict (see passage above).

- 1. If you feel someone has offended you, pick a time when you can be alone and go to that person in love and honesty to talk with them. Your goal should be to restore and resolve, not accuse.
- 2. If you are not satisfied that the matter has been resolved, then go to the administrator or pastor of the ministry in which you are involved. Do not unilaterally attempt to give only your side of the matter. Instead, invite the administrator or pastor to go with you as a *witness* to the person with whom you have an issue.

Like anything else in the Christian life, this commitment, requires continual vigilance. Remember, a mark of a mature walk with Jesus Christ is not whether we are able to expose a brother or sister in sin, but whether we are able to restore and reconcile relationships in Christ. Only in this way is Christ exalted.

Resource Department

The Resource Department is designed to provide K-5th grade students additional support to reach their academic potential. The program helps students develop skills and confidence needed to succeed in their learning. We are not a special education school and not legally sanctioned to provide any support or accommodations.

Resource Service Policy:

Based on classroom observations, assessments, and the Teacher Referral Form, the program supports the students with the greatest needs. The Student Success Team (SST) includes the classroom teacher, resource department, and the Associate Head of School. The SST meets to develop the student Action Plan based on student needs. The plan is designed to identify gaps in learning and provide alternative methods to support the learning goals. The parents need to consent to the Action Plan before a student receives services. The program is designed to provide individual and/or small group support in Reading, Writing, and Math. Based on student needs, a pre-determined amount of time will be scheduled for services in the resource room. The SST meets quarterly to review and evaluate student growth and suggest interventions and strategies to assist in the classroom. The ultimate outcome is for students to reach their academic goals and be at grade level. The resource department will be present at scheduled parent-teacher conferences.

Students with one-on-one aides may be eligible to receive services if they meet the following criteria:

- Students need to come independently.
- Students must demonstrate good behavior, focus, attention, and communication skills in order to benefit from services.
- Readiness and eligibility are determined by the classroom teacher, resource department, and Head of Schools (Student Success Team).

Resource Services for Middle School Students

If your child has an SST, IEP, or 504, our teaching staff will meet and review appropriate accommodations for your child. Parents will be included in the process and notified of the plan. In addition, our Study Skills and Student Support Services teacher will be overseeing the implementation of the approved plan and supporting the student during study skills.

Students may also be pulled out of class on Wednesday afternoons for check-in as needed. AVCS is not a special education school, nor are we required by law to provide services for our students. However, our goal is always to provide the least restrictive environment for our students and equip them with the skills and strategies they need to succeed. Our partnership with both student and parent is an essential part of the student's success.

Restrooms

Students must not loiter in the restroom doorway or play in the restroom. When leaving the classroom to use the restroom, students in JK - 2^{nd} grade must be accompanied to the restroom with a "buddy" or supervisor.

Safety (Campus)

The AVCS campus is a secure campus with exterior gates being locked beginning at 8:30 a.m. and remaining locked until 2:45 in the afternoon. Our campus is protected by two armed guards from Lion's Gate Security Solutions from 7:00 am to 6:00 pm daily. All visitors to our campus during these times must check-in with

the school office using the double glass doors. While on campus all visitors must have a badge indicating that they have checked in with office staff.

In the event of an unexpected emergency, AVCS has developed and communicated to all school personnel details regarding procedures and processes for fire, earthquake, evacuation, and an unlikely school threat. Each month staff and students participate in either a fire, earthquake, evacuation, or lockdown drill. These drills help us prepare and evaluate our emergency protocols needed to keep our school campus safe.

Our campus is equipped with 3 Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs)one in each of 3 buildings. In addition, there are 18 fire extinguishers located throughout our campus. Both the extinguishers and AED devices are maintained annually so that they are at peak performance should the need arise.

Our entire staff maintains (Teacher's, IA's, Office Administration, and Playground Aides) have current certification in both Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) and First Aid.

We partner with our security company, local emergency government agencies and have a designated School Resource Officer (SRO) to contact as needed or determined necessary by school administration.

AVCS remains dedicated and vigilant when it comes to the safety of our students and staff. We adopt a "see something, say something" philosophy and encourage parents to contact the school via our ReportIt App. Text AVCS to 63975 or www.reportit.com and use the code: AVCS.

School Boundaries

Students are not allowed in the office unless they have a pass, note, information from the teacher, or have been invited in by staff, faculty, or administrator. Students must not be in any room without staff personnel. Students may not be on any part of the slope surrounding the campus. Adults on duty will retrieve playground balls that go out of bounds. Also, students may not be in the parking lot without an adult or leave the parking lot area at any time during school hours.

School Closure

AVCS may close school for the following reasons: inclement weather, local school districts close school, CDC guidelines, any natural disaster, and/or power shortage. You will be notified by using our FACTS SIS (formerly RenWeb) Parent Alert as well as email.

Sexual Harassment

It is the policy of Aliso Viejo Christian School to strictly prohibit any conduct, which constitutes sexual harassment by an employee or non-employee and will act against any person guilty of such conduct. This policy is based on Title VII of the 1964 Civil Rights Act and related court decisions.

Sexual harassment in any form toward an employee or a student by another employee or a non-employee (e.g., student, parent, vendor, or visitor) will not be tolerated. Employees or students who believe that they have been or are being sexually harassed will inform the harasser that the behavior must stop immediately and report it to an administrator as soon as possible. Such conduct will not be tolerated and may be grounds for suspension, expulsion, or termination of employment. All matters concerned with sexual harassment will be investigated and presented to the proper authorities. The administration will make the final decision in regard to events concerning sexual harassment. It is the responsibility of each employee, volunteer, and student to respect the rights of all people both on and off our campus.

Snack Recess

The first recess is snack time. Snacks are to be carried to the lunch tables and eaten there. Acceptable morning snacks include fresh fruit and vegetables, cheese, crackers, etc. Students are not permitted to eat high sugar foods during snack recess. No candy.

Standardized Testing

All students enrolled at AVCS participate in our adopted our standardized test, the Iowa Test of Basic Skills. This testing data provides the school with valuable information regarding student performance in relationship to students locally and nationally. The results of this tool help school staff determine adjustments to curricula, set goals for students' growth, and how we can best prepare our students for the upcoming steps in their academic career. Students are not permitted to opt out of testing without administrative approval.

Students also participate in the STAR testing for reading three times per year. Math testing is completed in the fall and the spring. This data gives the teachers specific information on how best to address the individual learning needs of their students. As a result, are able to provide specific strategies and goals for the school year.

Student Check-In and Out

Check-in and check-out must be done through the school's main office whenever a student is brought to or taken from school during school hours. When checking out your student(s), the office will call the classroom to arrange for the student(s) to come to the office for dismissal. When checking in the student(s), the parent must accompany the student(s) to office. Please try to schedule appointments after school, if at all possible. With the safety and welfare of the child as the main priority, students will be released only to those persons indicated on the emergency release form--NO EXCEPTIONS! Please communicate with your student(s)'s teacher and the office through written form if you have made special arrangements for the pick-up of your student(s).

Student Supervision

Students must be under the direct supervision of school staff at all times. Students are not permitted to leave the campus with anyone other than a parent/guardian, teacher, or authorized staff member. Middle School students are released to go off campus at dismissal unless the appropriate signed After School ARK Supervision form is on file in the office. Children may not be left in any classroom or building without supervision. No one is allowed to enter a classroom after the teacher has locked the room for the day.

Students with Aides (Shadows)

Aliso Viejo Christian School recognizes and appreciates that students come to our school with a variety of gifts and talents, as well as various needs and challenges. We are a school that believes that not all children learn the same way. We know that teachers need to deploy a variety of strategies within the classroom to reach the differentiated school population.

AVCS can admit up to two students per grade level who need all-day assistance from an aide. We are a private, Christian school that does not accept federal funds. Therefore, we are not required by law to support IEP's or 504's established from outside school districts. We are not a special education school. If a student requires a full-time aide to attend AVCS, these are guidelines for admission and continued attendance.

- Student's aide must be qualified and have proper training to assist the student.
- Student's aide must follow and agree to all of AVCS staff guidelines/expectations.
- Student's behavior must follow established AVCS expectations within the classroom setting. Otherwise, the student must be removed from the classroom until able to return.
- For students in Junior Kindergarten through 4th grade, student's aide must be present with student throughout the school day, including lunch and recess. Any deviation from this expectation must be approved by administration.
- Fifth grade students should be able to participate in a minimum of 50% of the school day without an aide.
- Middle School students must be able to participate in 100% of the school day without the assistance of an aide.
- Parents must support necessary accommodations and modifications that would need to be made for student's academic program. These accommodations and modifications will be listed on students' report card.

If at any time the school deems that continued admission at AVCS is not in the best interest of the student or the school, the school would request a formal meeting with parents to discuss rationale behind the decision. Students would be able to complete the current school year before being asked to withdraw from AVCS. If there were other behavior issues involved in the student needing to withdraw, we would refer back to the AVCS handbook and the student may or may not be able to complete the year.

Tardy Policy

Being prompt and respecting others in the classroom and school develops responsibility. Middle School students are tardy after 8:00. Students in 3rd through 5th Grade are tardy after 8:15. Jr. Kindergarten through 2nd Grade students are tardy after 8:30. One tardy student disrupts the learning environment and costs teaching time for everyone!

The following are the tardy procedures:

- Elementary: Before 8:30 am, students should go directly to class where they will be marked tardy by their teachers. After 8:30 am, students must go with their parent to the office to sign in and receive an "admit slip". After 8:30, the teachers will not admit a student to class without the admit slip.
- Middle School: Students who arrive to school before 8:30 a.m. should report directly to their first period class. The teacher will mark the student tardy, and therefore, no office admit slip is required. Students arriving at 8:30 a.m. or later need to proceed to the office with their parent to sign in and receive an admit slip before going to class. Students are marked tardy in each class period when they are late to a class.
- **ALL SCHOOL:** Teachers will contact parents by e-mail after 5 tardies in a class. Administration will contact parents by e-mail after 10 tardies in a class.
- ALL SCHOOL: If tardies continue after 10 tardies, a student will not be permitted admission to class until the next passing period or recess.

Teacher Qualifications

It is the policy of AVCS to hire classroom teachers who hold a valid credential. Many of our teachers have Master of Education degrees. As Christian educators, we believe in a life committed to Christ, children, and lifelong learning. AVCS adheres to ACSI teacher requirements and provides ongoing professional development for our staff.

Telephone Usage and Cell Phone Usage

Calls may be made from the office only in the case of an emergency. Students should not call home to request assignments, supplies, or other belongings that have been left at home. Permission to go home with another student, stay late after school, etc., should be dealt with before coming to school. Parents are encouraged not to bring materials to school that students have forgotten. Children develop responsibility more effectively if they are made to accept consequences for leaving items at home.

During school campus hours students are not allowed to use cell phones. For further clarification please see page 14. School phones are available for **emergency use**. Parents are encouraged to refrain from cell phone use while on campus and may **NOT** use cell phones while driving in the parking lot. If students are going to ARK after school, cell phone use may not be permitted (Supervisor discretion).

Toys at School

Toys may not be brought to school unless requested to do so by a teacher. Trading cards are not permitted on campus. Electronic devices/games are not allowed on campus unless specified by a teacher. Toys brought to school will be taken by the teacher/staff member and will need a parent to retrieve. AVCS is not responsible for any lost, broken, or stolen personal items.

Transfer of School Records

If your child is changing schools or finishing 8th grade and moving on to high school, the new school may ask you for copies of report cards and transcripts. Please email Aubrie Vickers at avickers@avchristianschool.org to request these records. In your email, please let her know where the records will be sent. Official School Cumulative Records will be sent to the new school upon their request. (These records cannot be released to parents)

Transgender Policy

What we believe about sex and gender:

- 1. Our physical bodies are essential to our bearing of God's image. Genesis 1:27 says, "God created mankind in his own image, in the image of God he created them; male and female he created them."
- 2. The perfect original intent for humankind was for all humans to be classified as either male or female.
- 3. All scripture speaks to the intentional creation of man and woman, that gender and sex are one and the same.
- 4. Jesus affirms all of the above in Matthew 19:4-5 when He references Genesis 1:27.

Because the scriptures clearly describe humans as distinctly man and woman, AVCS will treat all students in accordance with God's original creation of their bodies and souls. Students who were born as males will be classified as boys, and students who were born as females will be classified as girls. Examples of practical implications for on campus issues include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Students will be required to use bathrooms aligned to their biological sex at birth.
- 2. Students will not be addressed by a pronoun or a description that does not align to their biological sex at birth, including "they" or "them".

- 3. When traveling on overnight field trips, students will stay in accommodations with students of the same biological sex at birth.
- 4. In circumstances when students are divided by gender for class activities, they will be classified by their biological sex at birth.
- 5. Students will be required to participate in athletics that are aligned to their biological sex at birth, unless the activity is specifically designed to be co-ed.
- 6. Established uniform policies for male and female students will be enforced by biological sex at birth.

Our care for students experiencing transgender struggles does not negate our expectation that school rules and policies are respected and adhered to by all AVCS students. If the student and/or family chooses not to adhere to the policies set forth and/or insists on a gender identification different than their biological sex at birth, the student will be unenrolled from AVCS for non-compliance with stated school policy.

Withdrawal

If it becomes necessary to withdraw a student from school, the office should be notified two weeks prior to the actual day of withdrawal. The following will be sent when requested by the Head of Schools or Registrar of the new school: report card, grade sheet (if the child has been present 10 days of the grading period), health records, and cumulative records. Before any transfer of records will be made, all financial obligations to AVCS must be completed. All books, tuition fees, etc. must be paid for, and teachers must complete a checkout form for each student. All application & registration fees are non-refundable.